Council

AGENDA
Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Tuesday, 11th September, 2012, at 1.00 pm  Ask for: Andrew Tait
Westgate Hall. Westgate Road, Canterbury  Telephone 01622 694342
CT1 2BT

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting
Membership
Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr | S Chittenden and
Mr R A Pascoe

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership and Substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda

3. Application to register land known as Scrapsgate Open Space at Minster-on-Sea
as a new Village Green (Pages 1 - 16)

4. Application to register land at Duncan Down, Whitstable as a new Village Green
(Pages 17 - 32)

5. Application to register land known as Chaucer Field at Canterbury as a new Village
Green (Pages 33 - 62)

6. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
(01622) 694002

Monday, 3 September 2012






Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land known as Scrapsgate Open Space and
Playing Field at Minster-on-Sea as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 11" September 2012.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant
that the application to register the land known as Scrapsgate Open Space and
Playing Field at Minster-on-sea as a new Village Green has been accepted, and
that the land subject to the application be formally registered as a Village
Green.

Local Members: Mr. A. Crowther Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as
Scrapsgate Open Space and Playing Field at Minster-on-Sea on the Isle of
Sheppey as a new Village Green from the Minster-on-Sea Parish Council (“the
applicant”). The application, made on 8" November 2010, was allocated the
application number VGA632. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this
report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

As a standard procedure set out in the Regulations, the applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s

Page 1



website. The publicity must state a period of at least six weeks during which
objections and representations can be made.

The application site

5.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of an
area of land of approximately 0.4 hectares (1.2 acres) in size which is situated to
the west of Scrapsgate Road and occupies an area between the sewage pumping
station, the Minster Marshes and Ripney Hill Farm in the parish of Minster-on-
Sea. The application site is shown in more detail on the plan at Appendix A.

Part of the application site is known as ‘Scrapsgate Road Playing Field’ and is
accessed via a gap from Scrapsgate Road in the south-eastern part of the
application site, and the remainder of the application site is known as ‘Scrapsgate
Field’ and accessed via a small car park situated off Scrapsgate Road adjacent to
the sewage pumping station.

The case

7.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the
local inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20
years.

In support of the application, 86 standard-form witness statements from local
residents were provided, all attesting to use of the application site for lawful sports
and pastimes ‘as of right’ for a period of over twenty years. A summary of the
evidence in support of the application is attached at Appendix C. Also included in
the application were several photographs showing use of the application site in
1974 and a newspaper article dated 28" June 1974 reporting an annual
gymkhana that took place on the application site.

Consultations

9.

Consultations have been carried out as required. No responses have been
received.

Landowner

10. The application site (with the exception of a small tract of land to the north of the

11.

sewage pumping station) is owned by Swale Borough Council (“the Borough
Council’) and is registered with the Land Registry under title numbers K247077
and K921207. The small tract of land referred to above has no registered
landowner.

The Borough Council has been contacted and has no objection to the application.
The Borough Council confirmed that the land was registered to it on 12" January
1967 and drew attention to a reference to the Physical Training and Recreation
Act 1937 contained in the Land Registry title which suggests that the land may be
held for recreational purposes. However, the Borough Council has not been able
to provide a copy of the original conveyance, nor has it been able to provide any

Page 2



Legal tests

12.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in
sections 15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

13.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered by the House of
Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or
permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

14.In this case, there is nothing within the user evidence to suggest that use of the
application site has been in exercise of any force or has taken place subversively.
The notion that users have had free and unrestricted access to the application
site is supported by the ease with which it is possible to access the application
site and the lack of any evidence on the ground of fencing or gates to restrict or
impede pedestrian access.

15.There are several notices on the application site, but none of these appear to
seek to prohibit general recreation on the land. There are some notices erected
by the Environment Agency in relation to the drainage ditch on the western edge
of the site warning of a sudden drop, flash flooding and uneven ground. There is a
notice at the entrance to the Scrapsgate Field warning pedestrians that the land is
a horse riding area and warning riders of ground conditions. Finally, there is also
a notice at the entrance to Scrapsgate Road Playing Field which does prohibit
golf and camping but which does not seek to restrict any other form of access. As
such, none of the notices would have had the effect of suggesting to a reasonable
user that s/he their use was under protest by the landowner.

16.Nor is there any suggestion within the user evidence that use has taken place by
virtue of any express permission from the landowner. The reference to the
Physical Training and Recreation Act 1937 (“the 1937 Act”) in the Land Registry
titte documentation implies that the land may be held for recreational purposes
and therefore that use may have taken place by virtue of an existing right.

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 3



However, the Borough Council has not been able to provide any documentation
to support this proposition and, in the absence of any such evidence, it is not
possible to conclude definitively that the land is held under the 1937 Act.

17.Therefore, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, use of the application
site would appear to have taken place ‘as of right'.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

18.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities?.

19.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’®.

20.In this case, the user evidence statements refer to the use of the land for ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ as a generic category and do not make reference to specific
categories. However, some users have added their own comments and suggest
that the land has been used for activities including walking, playing with children
and horse riding. A selection of these comments is included at Appendix C.

21.Therefore, it can be concluded that the application site has been used for the
purposes of lawful sports and pastimes.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

22.The definition of locality for the purposes of a Town or Village Green application
has been the subject of much debate in the Courts. In the Cheltenham Builders*
case, it was considered that “...at the very least, Parliament required the users of
the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be described as a
locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is
capable of definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean that
locality should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division
of the county’.

23.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:
‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that

2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90

Page 4



the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’®. Thus, what constitutes a
‘significant number’ will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each
case depending upon the location of the application site.

The ‘locality’

24.0n the application form, the applicant has provided a description of the location of
the land rather than specifying a legally recognised administrative unit as per the
legal requirements. The fact that the applicant has not specified a qualifying
locality is not, of itself, fatal to the application provided that the County Council is
satisfied that there exists a qualifying locality prior to the registration of the land as
a Town or Village Green.

25.In this case, the application site falls within the administrative parish of Minster-
on-Sea which is a legally recognised unit and thus would constitute a qualifying
locality for the purposes of section 15 of the Commons Act 2006.

‘significant number’

26.Having established the relevant locality, it is also necessary to consider whether
use of the application site has taken place by a significant number of the residents
of the locality. In this case, the application is supported by evidence
questionnaires from 86 local residents living throughout the parish of Minster-on-
Sea (as shown on the plan at Appendix D).

27.As such, it can be concluded that use has taken place by the community as a
whole (rather than individuals as trespassers) and this test is therefore met.

(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

28.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of
the application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above).

29.In this case, there is no evidence of any challenge to recreational use of the
application site and such use has continued up to (and indeed beyond) the date
of the application in November 2010.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

30.1In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use of the application site
‘as of right’ is continuing and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period (“the
material period”) is calculated retrospectively from the date of the application, i.e.
1990 to 2010.

°R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 5



31.The standard format of the user evidence questionnaires makes it difficult to
establish precise periods of use for each individual witness. However, the wording
of the statements suggests that all of the users have used the land for a period of
at least 20 years and, taking into account the Borough Council’s confirmation that
it acquired the land in 1967 and the newspaper article reporting the gymkhana
that took place on the land in 1974, it would appear that the application site has
been available for recreational use well beyond the requisite twenty year period.

Conclusion

32. Although this application is unopposed, it is still necessary for the County Council
to consider the application on its merits and to be satisfied that all of the requisite
legal tests have been met. Indeed, DEFRA’s guidance states that ‘an application
should be granted only if it is made in accordance with the criteria in the
legislation, and the absence of opposition to its being granted must not be taken
as suggestive that those criteria are met and need not be considered™®.

33.In this case, the evidence demonstrates (for the reasons set out above) that the
application site has been used by local residents without challenge for
recreational purposes for a period in excess of 20 years. There is no evidence to
suggest that such use has not been ‘as of right” or that it has been challenged in
any way. It can therefore be concluded that the legal tests concerning the
registration of the land as a Village Green have been met.

Recommendation

34.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to
register the land known as Scrapsgate Open Space and Playing Field at Minster-
on-sea as a new Village Green has been accepted, and that the land subject to
the application be formally registered as a Village Green.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221513 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Countryside Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further
details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site
APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence
APPENDIX D - Plan showing locality

® See section 7.17 of DEFRA’s ‘Guidance to commons registration authorities and PINS for the
pioneer implementation’ (Version 1.43, September 2011)

Page 6




594250

594500 00000
APPENDIX A:
Wb Plan showing the application site
: |}
k \\"\\\\k\\\““
S e
§ v /‘\\\k Lk : g
o R Parklar E
waw Villag
A
\\
(=]
o
<
=

174000"°"°°

MINSTER

173750 000000

173750

(s
Ripney Hill % » I'@Qy 23m 39
Farm 0O Ro N
T —F e
I =

. o] )

=i /%? / : /

0 0 & I

o | 203 & R

- Q -~

| &V >
555 oy
% @/
O o
O
A/ D ~
||
)
) 2R
S 3 0
2 o <IN/ 454 Thel g
N il Q L Ié [y a
® T : ®
N~ rvey material with th of u h o N~
= onery Office (¢) Cro c q—r _ -
Crown Copyrlgh/ n A :ﬁTo Ci i i nl 0&923 [2011]
594250 000000 594500 000000

Land subject to Village Green application at
Scrapsgate Road, Minster-on-Sea

Scale 1:5000 /




APPENDIX B:

FORM CA9 Copy of the appl_ication form

Commons Act 2006: section 15

Application for the registration of land
as a new Town or Village Green

This section is for office use only

Oificial stamp of the Registration Authority
indicating date of receipt: Application number:;

NGALDL
COMMOMT AUT 2006 Gnes

KENT COUN' W COUNCiL
REGIS STRATION AUTHORITY

08 NOV 2010 VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

+ All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

« Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete
parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for reglstratlon in
sect:on 15(2), (3) or {4) apply.

. Appllcants applying for voluntary reglstratlon under section 15(8) should, in addition, cc mplete pari,
; 9. Oniy the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8). ;

. Therq_a is no fee for applications under section 15.

j

Nfute 1 5 | 1. Commons Registration Authority

tnsert name of Commons T
Rgegistraﬁon ,t\._:uthority ¢ | To the: C:; PV, Q\;@-\,ﬁ—‘mﬂ\m L0 ud ]

LN C‘;um'm Cosuntrn
Covntaydoe (icoess, Tsaunes
Teavleta Wouae
County  YPUL
£ e Bsranie
T
e VX

Page 8




Note 2

if there is more than one
applicant, list ail names. Use a
separate sheet if necessary.
State the full title of the
organisafion if the applicant is a
body corporate or :
unincorporate. If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may recelve
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons {e.g. objectors) via
email, If part 3 is not completed
alf correspondence and notices
will be sent fo the first named
applicant.

2. Name and address of the applicant
Name:‘\‘\\%‘fc‘:a- ara-Dze ()P-R\g;\-\ Coumaae
Full postal address:

{incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling ¢

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code

E-maijl address:

Note 3

This part should be completed if
a representative, e.g. a solicitor,
is instructed for the purposes of
the appiication. If so alf
correspondence and nofices will
be sent to the person or firm
named hers. If you supply an
email address in the hox
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
emaif.

3. Name and address of representative, if any
Name:
Firm:

Full postal address:
{incl. Postcode)

Telephone number: .
(incl. national dialling cog

Fax number:
(incl. national dialting code)

E-mail address:

Note 4

For further details of the
requirements of an application
rgfer fo Schedule 4, paragraph
9-to the Commons Registration
(Lfngiand) Regulations 2008.

4, Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Applrcation made *
under section 15(8): i

i
If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, p]ease tick-
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular sufjsection and
qualifying criterion applies to the case. -

Section 15(2) applies: ;

Sectlon 1‘5(3) apPites:

0. Ol Ei\

Page 9




*Section 15(6) enables any
period of statutory closure
where access fo the land is
denied to be disregarded in
determining the 20 year period.

If section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use 'as of right’ ended and why:

If section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

Note &

This part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scafe of at least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accuyrately identified
boundary. State the Land
Registry title number where
known. '

5, Description and particulars of the area of land In respect of
which application for registration is made

Name by which usually known ‘Sc.&ﬁps:@%wc opiR Seree
e Pwﬂmc’, e

Location: Mmseree -ora-GE, SHE oF DWeppeq ¥enT -

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is already
registered Common Land):

Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the
land (ata scale of at least 1:2 500) 0

Note 6

IEmay be possible to indicate
the focalily of the green by
raference to an administrative
area, such as‘a parish or
electoraf ward or other area
stifficiently defmed by name
(such as a w!iage) If this is nof
pbssible g map should be
prqvjded on which a focality or
nefghboumood is marked
cigarfy ata scpie of 1:10, OOO

6. Locallty or nelghbourhood within a Iocallty in respect of
which the application is made

indicate the locality (or neighbourhood within the locality): to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area of L
geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked: Tve Prrtal o Laed

Kiown &3 03(12“{"-:&1\1\; ofn Spree s Aopwe Hiwe

A MamsTee on-Qan )3“‘%{% Yagier gvg@\,wogc:
8:3 Tha ThASTeR "‘"“‘?e‘_s\’ﬁ-f; ,\S.Ce_ememu ﬂu—xﬁ) e
R-EQNE Vi Seen. ’

Please tick here if a map is atfached (at a gcale of 1:10,000); EZI/

Page 10




Note 7

Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
registration here and enclose a
separate full statement and all
other evidence including any
witness statements in support of
the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green

A DgemnemoT Noterz ©F Tae Regoaedy o FhrSTed -
~Son Mean IeDcee CARRgHT T Wherul, SprIs
oD BOZT TG o T Laey Khowa Oy Tig

(QcenpaenTe  oPENSFeg OO (‘DU“-\;SM;- Flaws’
Tew MMeEToR o ~SSef e A Peany v vwela
T TueeTy Moadd  aes TR Cmmie T Os
S v Twe TTame OF ﬁPPuQ‘AT\d\)'

Twae W awa

Ponrmingiond  juivinsws T Saeg
Beene: Demicgy T Step TTHEMN J WY THEUT @a(\a
Seesetwg  Ouar T Ty Wiz Oiee Ty T
A Ceomtvaned Poron o Moo T ey
o,

TG PPPLC TR S0Rs A TERCunn g N
e Qeeasred 3¢ Towesy B \I\Ll.‘a\%ﬁ; G apetND
U e v Xhaas O e ID0RAMGATE 0P
Qeres A p\gﬁme- Pad ' Uney \§ 7 BehluT™uan
Yo Q@g\&'m“"ﬁuq %‘3 VL1 oy —Thg VSe oF
Tuge Lo T2 Tivg PREDER F Londul Ty
e Pt TimeEl Cas oF Rfj'\\'r) Ay VavivpuT
Camaante Fat T Lamsowsar Fea A
Pren™ S ME T ’Tue«a::l NSaleS

Olargz ~H0 = VTRST
Eeeen ol

R ooy

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying to register the land as
a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

Lang ‘“\f:-lf-\"f‘i‘

Lo mpe Ofcgr Pras -+ opes Speews
Ccsv\ I"\uN\"“B \}NJ\Q-‘-'NHWF\\_ "13;2&\}\&_&:_3
St %(’5\\1}%\-\ Cruniea

g\u(’\ﬁ \\:ut%@_
Erese hS‘iQ@‘&'T
Srpeaac: fo o itg

e
Mave AWT

Page 11




Note 9

List or enter in the form all such
declarations that accompany
the application. This can.include
any written declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a lefter), and
also any such declarations
made on the form itself.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the land

Neog Opprrcntie

Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
land must be included for
voluntarily registration
applications. There is no need
fo submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to which if was a
party but they should stiff be
listed. Use a separate sheet if
necessary.

k]

10. Supporting documentation

- R\ PTG VLrrtrena, -Srartatesit

- = N L T Ehoenes Tarn VA osowsos

- Preas. 2T e Oren L% Jume 1o,

Note 11

List any ofher matters which
should be brogght to the
altention of the Registration
Apthority (in particular if a
person inferested in the fand Js
ekpected to challenge the
application for registration). Fulf
details should be given here or
oh a separate‘sheet if
ngcessary.

r
'

11. Any ofher infofmation relating to thé application !
TG T-‘-‘C\_\.u;)g—f':; o OV “ve Qext
Yoot o CHYyTCugs, otw ~Twg I D |
e KREST =F 7TV anp Ta  OlieccaTe®
oo e M3 2F Twe oy Cuud,
Daa Lfizea Oho  Owidnen Pulluniy

Page 12




The application must be signed

by each individual applicant, or Signature(s) of applic ant(s)wT‘MS\\ Co o arwetrtan, COa2un QLA..‘K\L)

by the authorised officer of an
applicant which is a body
corporate or unincorporale.

=3 BewaE ofF Ovwestea - omd- See Persw(Guney

Date: '2,\ \\\\ < -

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form to:

The Commons Registration Team
Kent County Council
Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998

The apphcatron and any representanons made cannot be freated as confidential. To determine the
apphcatfon it will be necessary for the Commons Regtstratlon Authonty to dfsciose information
received fram you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Deparfments
pubhc bodies other orgamsatlons and members of the publ:c :

A copy of fhlS form and any accompan ymg documments may be dfsclosed upon recelpf of a request
for mformaﬁon under the Enwronmenfal Information Reguianons 2004 and the Freedom of
Informat.ron ‘Act 2000. . . ~

Page 13




SoySIEW JNISULY




APPENDIX C:
Summary of user evidence

The user evidence submitted in support of this application consists of identical ‘standard
form’ statements which have been individually signed by local residents.

The statements all read: “As a resident of Minster on Sea, | have indulged as right in
lawful sports and pastimes on the land known as ‘Scrapsgate Open Space and Playing
Field’ in Minster-on-Sea, Sheerness, Kent for a period of more than twenty years and |
continue to do so at the current time. | have done this without permission, without force
or seeing notices to stop me and without being secretive about this”.

In addition, a number of people added their own comments in a space at the bottom of
the form setting out their own observations and evidence of use in greater detail. A
sample of these comments is reproduced below.

Mrs. L. Barton — “| have used Scrapsgate Open Space and Playing field all my life...
[my children] played and rode ponies plus walked our dogs. Now their children are using
this lovely open space...”

Mrs. S. Christie — “| have used this field for many years and would find it a great shame
to see it used for anything other than recreational activities”

Mrs. S. Crane — ‘it is also a good place to walk the dog”
Mrs. M. Oates — “| use this area for dog walking and horse riding”

Mrs. R. Grownsell — “This is one of the local places we use, my son has taken many
nature photographs there”

Mrs. J. Harland — ‘I often go for a walk along there”
Mr. P. Houghton — “| have used this area for at least 40 years”
Mrs. J. Ingleton — “This has always been a place for football and sports”

Mr. M. Ingleton — “As a local resident | have ridden across and around this field for the
last 60 years... | also take my dogs there on a regular basis and enjoy the wildlife”

Mrs. A. Lawrence — “| have been using the area stated for the past 30 years for dog
walking and horse riding... | use this area on a regular basis”

Mrs. B. Robinson — “This is a lovely play field. Even if lots of boys are playing football
there is still plenty of space to do other things. Young children love walking round the
field, to see all the horses ad sometimes the ducks and the rabbits. It is also used to
walk dogs.”

Mrs. S. Strong — “Over 20 years ago, until 2004, my son and | rode our horses in this
field (one of the few off road sites available for horse riding in this area). My children
and now grandchildren played football and other games here, as well as fishing for
tadpoles and newts in the ditches. | continue to use it regularly for walking my dog.”

Page 15



000865 000,69 000965 000565 000¥6S 000€6S

00011

yoinyojyseg

0002.1

Plan showing locality

APPENDIX D:

i g e H Hfezing
uLey 24l g a . adey \m“\/ .

000€.LlL

000v.LL

e INA N2 o ' pag-uo-13jsulpy

DAacao 10
roge To

000€.Ll

000v.LL

UMO:|
au 1 __r\{_

||llr|lfdr|llh

00086S 000.6S 00096S 00056S 000v6S 000€6S




Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land at Duncan Down at Whitstable
as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Countryside Access Service to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 11" September 2012.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant
that the application to register the land at Duncan Down at Whitstable as a new
Village Green has been accepted, and that the land subject to the application
be formally registered as a Village Green.

Local Members: Mr. M. Harrison and Mr. M. Dance Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Duncan Down
in Whitstable as a new Village Green from Mr. A. Clark on behalf of the Friends of
Duncan Down (“the applicant”). The application, made on 1% September 2011,
was allocated the application number VGA637. A plan of the site is shown at
Appendix A to this report and a copy of the application form is attached at
Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6™ April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

As a standard procedure set out in the Regulations, the applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s

Page 17



website. The publicity must state a period of at least six weeks during which
objections and representations can be made.

The application site

5. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of an
area of woodland of approximately 0.05 hectares (0.14 acres) in size which is
situated to the north-east of South View Farm and in the vicinity of Benacre Road
at Whitstable.

6. Access to the application site is via a footbridge crossing the brook which was
installed by the Friends of Duncan Down in 2010 following requests from local
residents. Prior to that time, access to the application site was gained via stepping
stones (i.e. lumps of concrete or logs) across the brook.

7. The application site forms part of a wider area known as Duncan Down and
immediately abuts existing Village Greens VG232 and VG240, as shown on the
plan at Appendix A.

The case

8. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the
local inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20
years.

9. In support of the application, 42 user evidence questionnaires from local residents
were provided, demonstrating use of the application site for a range of
recreational activities for a period in excess of twenty years. A summary of the
evidence in support of the application is attached at Appendix C.

Consultations

10.Consultations have been carried out as required. No responses have been
received.

Landowner

11.A search with the Land Registry has revealed that the land is not registered to
any known landowner.

12.As stated above, under the current Regulations, the duty to inform the landowner
of the application rests with the applicant. However, the Regulations also specify
that that duty does not apply where the landowner cannot be reasonably
identified".

Legal tests

13.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County
Council must consider the following criteria:

' Regulation 22(3) of the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008

Page 18



(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in
sections 15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

14.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered by the House of
Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell? case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or
permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

15.1n this case, there is no evidence to indicate that use of the application site has
been in any way with force, in secrecy or undertaken on a permissive basis.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

16.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities®.

17.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green™”.

18.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that the land has been used for
recreational activities. The summary of evidence of use by local residents at
Appendix C shows the activities claimed to have taken place.

19.The evidence of use submitted in support of the application refers predominantly
to walking (with or without dogs), but there is also reference to use of the
application site for the purposes of wildlife observation, nature study, photography
and playing with children.

2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 19



(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

20.The definition of locality for the purposes of a Town or Village Green application
has been the subject of much debate in the Courts. In the Cheltenham Builders®
case, it was considered that “...at the very least, Parliament required the users of
the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be described as a
locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is
capable of definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean that
locality should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division
of the county’.

21.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:
‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that
the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’®. Thus, what constitutes a
‘significant number’ will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each
case depending upon the location of the application site.

The ‘locality’

22.The Applicant specifies the locality at Part 6 of the application form as ‘Gorrell
Ward, Whitstable’.

23.The Canterbury City Council electoral ward of Gorrell is a legally recognised
locality with defined boundaries and would therefore constitute a qualifying locality
for the purposes of this application.

‘significant number’

24.In this case, the application is supported by evidence questionnaires from 42 local
residents, although six of these do not live within the qualifying locality. Even
disregarding the non-qualifying use, this leaves evidence of use of the application
site from 36 local residents. The user evidence demonstrates very regular usage
of the application site, with the vast majority of recreational users using the land
on an at least weekly basis. Furthermore, most report seeing other people using
the land on a regular basis.

25.The evidence of use submitted in support of the application suggests that the
application site is in very frequent use by local residents and it would therefore
have been obvious to any landowner (had there been one) that the land was in
regular usage by the local community.

26.As such, it can be concluded that the application site has been used by a
significant number of the residents of a defined locality.

® R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90
°R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 20



(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

27.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of
the application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above).

28.In this case, there is no evidence of any challenge to recreational use of the
application site and such use has continued up to (and indeed beyond) the date
of the application in September 2011.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

29.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use of the application site
‘as of right’ is continuing and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period (“the
material period”) is calculated retrospectively from the date of the application, i.e.
1991 to 2011.

30.The user evidence summarised at Appendix C demonstrates that there has been
use of the application site in excess of the last twenty years. Therefore, it can be
concluded that there has been use of the application site for a full period of twenty
years.

Conclusion

31. Although this application is unopposed, it is still necessary for the County Council
to consider the application on its merits and to be satisfied that all of the requisite
legal tests have been met. Indeed, DEFRA’s guidance states that ‘an application
should be granted only if it is made in accordance with the criteria in the
legislation, and the absence of opposition to its being granted must not be taken
as suggestive that those criteria are met and need not be considered’” .

32.In this case, the user evidence set out at Appendix C demonstrates (for the
reasons set out above) that the application site has been used by local residents
without challenge for recreational purposes for a period in excess of 20 years. It
can therefore be concluded that the legal tests concerning the registration of the
land as a Village Green have been met.

Recommendation

33.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to
register the land at Duncan Down at Whitstable as a new Village Green has been
accepted, and that the land subject to the application be formally registered as a
Village Green.

Accountable Officer:
Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221513 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk

’ See section 7.17 of DEFRA’s ‘Guidance to commons registration authorities and PINS for the
pioneer implementation’ (Version 1.43, September 2011)

Page 21




Case Officer:
Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Countryside Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further
details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

Page 22




165000

APPENDIX A:

Plan showing application site

Cug
Ovey, YRoy,
o

7o

— VG232
‘ ! land already regisigred as
I Village Green (VG232'and VG240)
Gorrell Wood
. i VG240

: - land subject to

s ? Village Green application
«*‘;J
& m

$§ 8

This mapgis based upon Ordnance Survey ‘material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlle of Her Majesf*s-Qffice (c) Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence number 100019238 [2012]

165000

Land subject to Village Green application
at Duncan Down, Whitstable

Scale 1:2500

| 777 G




FORM CA9

Commons Act 2006: section 15

- Application for the registration of land
as a new Town or Village Green

APPENDIX B:
Copy of the application form

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority

indicating date of receipt;

Application number:

VOALKT

MS ACT 2008

g § SEP 201

UHTY COUNCIL
CEATION AUTHORITY

VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

» All applicants shouid complete parts 1—6 and 10-12.

» Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete
parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in

section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

s Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

* There is no fee for applications under section 15.

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority

Insert name of Commons
Registration Authority To the:

Keont Count, Couna:l

Yublic (5141[5 d/ Nﬁj’ %&t’f_@éﬁh‘/{rbn 7@am
| nvicter tHouse

COU-‘\fy Healf

MADSTONE

ME 4 1 XX

Page 24




Note 2

If there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
separate sheet if necessary.
State the full fitle of the
organisalion if the applicant is a
" body corporate or
unincorporate. If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email. If part 3 is not completed
all correspondence and notices
will be sent to the first named
applicant.

2, Name and address of the applicant

. ~n OLARK |
Name: Aslf\lé:j U?et.—egf o Tle Frends QA Durean Dsud
Fuil postal ad . J

{incl. Postcode)

Telephone nu
{incl. national di

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 3
This part should be completed if
- a representative, e.q. a solicitor,
is instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so alf
correspondence and notices will
be sent to the person or firm
named here, If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
persons (e.q. objeclors) via
email.

3. Name and address of representative, if any

Name:
Firm:

Full postal address:
(incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(inch national dialling cos

Note 4

For further defails of the
requirements of an application
refer to Schedule 4, paragraph
9 fo the Commons Registration
{(England) Regulations 2008.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

if you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made
under section 15(8): 0

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick

one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and
qualifying criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(3) applies: O

Section 15(2) applies:

Section 15(4) applies: : O

Page 25




*Section 15(6) enables any
period of statutory closure
where access to the land is
denied to be disregarded in
determining the 20 year period.

If section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right’ ended and why:

If section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20

years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

Note §
This part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of af least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately identified
boundary. State the Land
Registry title number where
known. ‘

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of

which application for registration is made

Name by which usually known: ?a ('{-A/: DU 1aan ®O Wa
orrell Wood, Lilibstadle

Location: (Jarm 1'57%(64’, lard O e south Cast djc

Berncel Roadl, ""L‘If'ﬁ‘t'zé/& {7{7 /o Phe. soeh of
o lire madkeel "Aein' and > e noth gl KTHE5T

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is already
registered Common Land):

Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the
land (at a scale of at least 1:2,500): IE/

Note 6

it may be possible to indicate
the locality of the green by
reference to an administrative
area, such as a parnsh or
elecforal ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
(such as a village). If this is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
neighbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the locality (or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or

geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

qan—e // 44 rd(/ WA; A.deh{/e,

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000): [

Page 26




Note 7

Applicants should provide a

summary of the case for

registration here and enclose a

separate full statement and all
other evidence including any

" witness statements in support of

the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green

Euiofencd ca/: Somé 42 tsitnesses
(1{‘0(6 aré Mart?_) that demarstule #H.oat

M% df\d( G%AE’,—S rffreJedﬁy A c‘*“{jﬂ; Gl
ﬂ-UM(’!(r a/[ 71{‘6 ;ﬂhdé:fdwb % 746 /Oca/{fy

havé l")d/a/jép(;ﬂ /daJ/Qa/ .s;aar/.x anA_
pa;/ffv-é‘s oq 748 lard for o poPraA

2 arcess g RO gears al al rz}A/,

See atfzcled slate-et, witadss fperas
J A b A Visted

Note 8

Use a separale sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying fo register the land as
a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

"7-7\6 /aqaf/z‘s a«rejris*ereo(.

Page 27




Note 9

List or enter in the form all such

decfarations that accompany

the application. This can inciude

any writfen declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a lefter), and

" also any such declarations

made on the form itself.

charge over, the land

%
/

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant

Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
land must be included for
voluntarily registration
applications. There is no need
to submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to which it was a
party but they should stilf be
listed. Use a separafe sheet if
recessary.

10. Supporting documentation

See attocted tst 4/([ coibaessec
M éA’é‘;’(”‘%S

Note 11

List any other matters which
should be brought to the
atfention of the Registration
Authority (in particular if a
person interested in the land is
expected to chalienge the
application for registration}. Full
details should be givern here or
on a separate sheet if
necessary.

'11,/,_4%

11. Any other information relating

He Lay /omdéucedé no

o plott)

escled at he addess

eacs. A check on 257
Heve Aofails had s8Y naF e wodakd |

to the application

G/dﬂ:vt._s A Lhave n ;«".'rk’r'e‘sf—,'q 7'4( /<A

evidecce JHE N

bot he is celate Ao Hoe rej'rlrft’rea( QeINErS
“TTAONO K TLESD polesstmdd
- The owaers pareX T eresn Aave ast

CS Gpvoen SO AAry
9’55

o

20t¢ ~evealed

Page 28




Note12 12. Signature
The application must be signed

by each individual applicant, or
by the authonised officer of an
applicant which is a body

_ corporate or unincororate.

Signature(s) of applicant(s):

Date: 15% Sép’fcé"" ér 2

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form to:

The Commons Registration Team
Kent County Council
Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

3

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannof be freated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authonty fo disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Govermmment Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request
for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 29




610750

_—

611000

ﬁ

A

o,

HAY FIELD

000O48T

164750

3
» rE TR S R e h TEibarmissign o ,m.aou of Her
RET o g byrigt 8 Y les
g L T e b ot ctekar| 15-2045 12

0GLP9T

1
it %m_mmz_m Stationery Office (C) n Copyright.
B aly lead td-prosgcltionlor civil proceedings.

610750

611000



APPENDIX C:
Table summarising evidence of use

Name Period Frequency | Type of use Comments
of use of use
Mr. G. BROWN 2006 — 1/2 times Dog walking See others using the land for
present per week walking ‘most times that | use it’.
Ms. J. 1980 — Daily Walking, bird Often see others using the land.
BROWNING present watching, playing
with children
Mr. A. CLARK 1960 — Regularly Dog walking, nature | Used the land periodically until
present study, access to 1997, then weekly until 2004, now
other parts of the daily. See others using the land, or
Down, playing going to it, on most days.
games as a child
Ms. C. CLARK 1963 — Daily Dog walking, Lived away from the area 1977 —
present childhood play 1998. See people on the land on
most days, most are regular users.
Mr. M. CLARK 2004 — 2/3 times Dog walking See other local people using the
present per week land on most occasions.
Mr. B. CLARK 1975 — Monthly Playing with children | Seen local dog walkers using the
present land on a regular basis over 40
years.
Ms. M. CLARK 1975 — Monthly Dog walking, playing | Seen others using the land on a
present with children regular basis.
Mrs. F. 1999 — Daily Dog walking, litter Frequently see others using the
CORNISH present picking land
Mr. R. CORNISH | 1999 — Weekly Walking Frequently see others using the
present land
Mrs. D. CROFT 1990 — Weekly Dog walking Often see others using the land
present
Mr. S. CROFT 1990 — Weekly Dog walking Often see others using the land
present
Mr. C. 1967 — Daily Dog walking See others using the land for dog
EDWARDS present walking every day
Mrs. D. ELLIS 1981 — 3/4 times Dog walking Quite often see others using the
present per week land
Mr. J. ELLIS 1981 — 3/4 times Dog walking, bird Often see others using the land
present per week watching
Ms. H. 2009 — Most days Dog walking Frequently see use by others
HANDFORD present
Ms. D. 1999 — 1/2 times Walking Have seen a few other people
JOHNSTONE present per month using the land
Ms. K. LEE 1991 — Daily Dog walking Regularly see others using the land,
present mostly local people
Mrs. M. LERIGO | 1964 — Not stated Dog walking, bird Frequently seen use by others.
present watching Have always regarded the land as
part of Duncan Down.
Mr. V. LERIGO 1964 — Occasionally | Walking,
present photography
Ms. K. MAGEE 2005 — Daily Walking See other people walking their dogs
present on the land on a daily basis
Mrs. C. 1980 — Weekly Walking Frequently see others walking dogs
MASTERS present
Mr. P. 1980 — Twice Recreation and dog | Often see others using the land
MASTERS present weekly walking
Mr. S. 1995 — Fortnightly Recreation and dog | Occasionally see others using the
NORCOTT present walking land
Mrs. J. 1992 — Weekly Dog walking and See others using the land ona

age 31




NORCOTT present playing with children | weekly basis
Mr. C. OLSEN 2002 — Weekly Walking Occasionally see others using the
present land for dog walking
Mr. R. PARKER | 2006 — 1/2 times Dog walking Used the land between 1984 and
present per day 2006 when not resident in area
Mrs. P. PARKER | 1961 — Twice daily | Nature study, walks | Did not use the land between 1976
present since 2006 — 1986. frequently see dog walkers
on the land.
Mr. M. PEARCE | 1983 — 4 days per | Dog walking Have seen others using the land
2011 week ‘most times | have used it’
Mrs. S. 1990 — Daily Dog walking Saw others dog walking on a
PERCIVAL 2005 regular basis, some recognized as
living locally
Mr. C. PHILLIPS | 1996 — 2/3 times Dog walking See others using the land on every
present per week visit
Mr. S. PHILLIPS | 1989 — Daily Dog walking, nature | See others using the land for dog
present walks walking on a daily basis
Mrs. S. 1989 — Daily Dog walking See others using the land for dog
PHILLIPS present walking on a daily basis
Mrs. M. 1980 — Monthly Dog walking
PI1ZZOTTI present
Mrs. C. 1970s — | Daily Dog walking See others using the land most
SNELLGROVE present days for dog walking
Mr. S. 1996 — Weekends | Dog walking
SNELLGROVE present
Mr. A. 2005 — Most days Cycling, dog walking | See use by others for dog walking
STEWARD present quite regularly
Mrs. S. 2005 - Daily Dog walking, See use by others on a daily basis.
STEWARD 2011 children walking Always treated this area as part of
Duncan Down
Mrs. M. TAYLOR | 1970 — Weekly Dog walking Frequently seen use by others
present
Mr. C. 1971 — Daily Dog walking See use by others for dog walking
WALLACE present virtually daily
Mr. B. WEBB 1984 — 4/5 times Dog walking and
present per week wildlife observation
Mrs. G. WEBB 1984 — daily Dog walking, See use by others every day
present keeping fit, wildlife
observation,
meeting people,
educating grandson
Ms. C. WISE 1979 — daily Dog walking See use by others for walking every
present day

Page 32




Agenda ltem 5

Application to register land known as Chaucer Fields
at Canterbury as a new Town Green

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 11" September 2012.

Recommendation: | recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into
the case to clarify the issues.

Local Members: Mr. G. Gibbens Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as Chaucer
Fields at Canterbury as a new Town or Village Green from a group of local
residents, namely Mr. J. Barton, Mr. R. Norman, Mrs. P. Cherry, Mrs. S. Power and
Mr. A. Peariman (“the applicants”). The application, made on 21" April 2011, was
allocated reference number VGA629. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to
this report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and the
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a
Commons Registration Authority to register land as a Town or Village Green where
it can be shown that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the application
has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’ ended (section
15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the Regulations, the Applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the
County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with

Page 33



the opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of
at least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

The application site

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) is situated
adjacent to Chaucer College on the University of Kent campus in the city of
Canterbury. The application site consists of approximately 17.6 hectares (43.5
acres) of meadow and woodland which forms a green space between the main
university buildings and the residential estates in the vicinity of Salisbury Road in
the St. Stephen’s area of the city of Canterbury. The application site does not have
any officially recognised name, although it has latterly become known locally
informally as Chaucer Field.

Access to the application site is via its unfenced boundary along University Road’,
or via the Public Rights of Way (Public Footpaths CC5 and CC6 and Bridleway
CC8) which cross and abut the site, providing access from the residential estates to
the south and east of the application site. A plan showing the application site is
attached at Appendix A.

. Although not directly relevant to the consideration of this particular application, it

should be noted that part of land at the south-western end of the application site
was subject to a previous Village Green application (involving the land over which
Chaucer College is now built) which was considered by the County Council and
rejected by the Environment Sub-Committee at its meeting on 1% June 1990.

The case

9.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

10.In support of the application, 262 user evidence questionnaires were submitted

11

detailing the recreational use of the application site by local inhabitants. A sample
summary of the evidence submitted in support of the application is attached at
Appendix C.

.Also submitted in support of the application were detailed statements of use from

each of the applicants, photographs and aerial photographs showing the application
site, a map showing the locality, a newspaper article and a list of facts and figures
regarding the St. Stephen’s ward in the city of Canterbury.

Consultations

12.Consultations have been carried out as required.

13. Canterbury City Council confirmed that application does not affect any land in its

ownership and as such had no comment to make on the application.

! University Road is a private road but Public Footpath CC69 runs over it thereby providing a public right
of access on foot.

Page 34



14.The local County Member, Mr. G. Gibbens, responded in support of the application
and stated that discussions with local residents have confirmed that the land has
been used openly and freely for a period in excess of twenty years for a range of
recreational activities. Residents living in the locality have confirmed that no
permission has ever been sought from or given by the University for such use.

15.A large volume of letters in support of the application (85 in total) have also been
received from local residents and students of the University. The letters add a
significant amount of further evidence of recreational use in addition to the existing
questionnaires submitted in support of the application.

Landowner

16.The application site forms part of the campus of the University of Kent (“the
University”) and is registered with the Land Registry under title number K254318 as
being within the University’s land ownership.

17.The University has objected to the application on the following grounds:

e That the documentation submitted in support of the application is not sufficient
to prove that a significant number of the inhabitants of the locality have indulged
in lawful sports and pastimes on the land between 1991 and 2011;

e That there is clear evidence that the use of the application site is with the
permission of the University, communicated by notices positioned at each
entrance to the application site throughout the relevant period; and

e That use has not been by a significant number of the residents of the locality or
neighbourhood and such use as was made was confined to footpaths and
desire lines.

18.The University’s position is that there has not been 20 years’ use of the application
site ‘as of right'. Between November 1989 and April 1990, following a previous
Village Green application, signs were erected at each entrance to the University
(including the entrance points to Chaucer Fields) stating that the land was private
property and that access was by way of a revocable licence. Subject to occasional
repair and replacement, the signs have remained continuously since that date. The
University admits that signs were on occasion subject to vandalism, thus rendering
them illegible, but asserts that the signs were repaired and legible at other times.

19.The University contends that the Chaucer Fields were not regularly used by a
significant number of the residents of the locality throughout the material period,
and suggests that the land was unattractive and unsuitable for lawful sports and
pastimes as much of the application site is densely covered in trees and other parts
have been used to take a hay crop therefore making it difficult to engage in lawful
sports and pastimes.

20.The University adds that it has now applied for planning permission to construct a
new 150 room hotel and conference centre on the land as well as a new college
providing for 762 new student rooms. In the University’s view, the Village Green
application has been made in the context of local objection to the development and
a desire to continue using the land.

21.Included in support of the University’s objection were eleven statutory declarations
from current and former University employees (summarised at Appendix D). The

Page 35



substance of that evidence is essentially that there have been notices in place at
various times on the application site indicating that recreational use is by virtue of
revocable permission (many of which have latterly been vandalised) and that, whilst
the land is used largely as a short cut to and from the University, any recreational
use (which is mainly by dog walkers) has been in exercise of the existing rights of
way over the application site.

Legal tests

22.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until the
date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

23.The statutory scheme in relation to Village Green applications is based upon the
English law of prescription, whereby certain rights can be acquired on the basis of a
presumed dedication by the landowner. This presumption of dedication arises
primarily as a result of acquiescence (i.e. inaction by the landowner) and, as such,
long use by the public is merely evidence from which a dedication can be inferred.

24.In order to infer a dedication, use must have been ‘as of right’. This means that use
must have taken place without force, without secrecy and without permission (‘nec
vi, nec clam, nec precario’).

25.In this context, force refers not only to physical force, but to any use which is
contentious or exercised under protestz: “if, then, the inhabitants’ use of the land is
to give rise to the possibility of an application being made for registration of a village

green, it must have been peaceable and non-contentious”™.

26.In this case, whilst there is no evidence to suggest that use of the application site
has been either secretive or in exercise of any physical force to gain entry to the
application, it is not clear as to whether use of the application site has been by
virtue of any form of permission.

Use by employees and students of the university
27.The University’s evidence is that any use of the application site for recreational

purposes has largely been by students of the University or by dog walkers walking
along the footpaths. A number of the user evidence questionnaires submitted in

% Dalton v Angus (1881) 6 App Cas 740 (HL)
® R (Lewis) v Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council [2010] UKSC 11 at paragraph 92 per Lord Rodger

Page 36



support of the application and the letters received in support of the application are
from employees of the university. Arguably, those directly associated with the
University (i.e. staff and students) would have an implied permission to use
University land. From the landowner’s perspective, the University would have no
cause to challenge such use. Therefore, use of the application site by employees
and students of the University will generally be referable to an implied permission
and will not be considered to be ‘as of right'.

Notices

28. A significant area of dispute between the parties in this case involves notices which
are said to have been in place on the application site. The application appears to
have been prompted in part by the erection of permissive notices on the application
early in 2011. These notices read “The University of Kent at Canterbury hereby
gives notice that the land is private property and any access by members of the
public is by licence only and may be revoked at any time”. The University has
confirmed that these notices were erected from February 2011. The effect of these
notices was to bring ‘as of right’ usage of the application site to an end.

29.The University’s case is that notices have been in place on University-owned land
since its formation in the 1960s. Following the previous Village Green application in
1989 (which concerned land including part of and adjacent to the current application
site), permissive notices were erected. It has been difficult to pinpoint a precise date
for when the notices were erected, but it is thought that this took place in spring
1990. The University contends that, since that time, the notices have been
consistently maintained.

30.The applicant does not dispute that such notices were erected in 1990. However,
the applicant’s position is that throughout the relevant twenty-year period, no
attempt has been made by the University to maintain the signs, which became
illegible due to graffiti.

31.There is therefore a great deal of uncertainty regarding the notices and, in
particular, their effect on use. It is not at all clear from the evidence that the notices
were fully legible during the early part of the twenty-year period and the evidence in
support of the application is that they were not. In the absence of any evidence to
prove definitively that the notices were legible during the relevant, it is not possible
to conclude whether use of the application site was, or was not, ‘as of right’.

Use of existing Public Rights of Way

32.Recreational use which has the outward appearance of being in exercise of an
existing Public Right of Way is not qualifying use for the purposes of Village Green
registration. The issue was considered by the Courts in Laing Homes®, in which the
judge said that: ‘it is important to distinguish between use that would suggest to a
reasonable landowner that the users believed they were exercising a public right of
way to walk, with or without dogs... and use that would suggest to such a landowner
that the users believed that they were exercising a right to indulge in lawful sports
and pastimes across the whole of the fields’.

* R (Laing Homes) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70 at 79 per Sullivan J.
Page 37



33.In this case, there are several recorded Public Rights of Way on or abutting the
application site. The path running along the south-western boundary of the
application site is recorded on the Definitive map of Public Rights of Way as CC5.
The path running from Eliot College to the housing estates along the south-eastern
boundary of the application site is also recorded as a Public Footpath (CC6).
Furthermore, there is also a Bridleway which crosses the application site, known as
CC8, which runs broadly parallel inside its south-eastern boundary.

34.There is also reference in the University’s evidence to a linear ‘desire line’ running
diagonally across the meadow used to take a hay crop. The University was well
aware of the use of this linear route and ensured that it was mowed to facilitate
access to and from the University. Although not a formally recorded Public Right of
Way, the use of this desire line would have been a rights of way type user not
capable of giving rise to Village Green registration.

35.The vast majority of the user evidence refers to walking. It is difficult on paper to
differentiate between general recreational walking which involves wandering over a
wide area, and walking which involves walking along a defined route between
specific points. It is also not clear from the evidence precisely where the walking
has taken place and, in particular whether it has involved walking along the Public
Rights of Way on and around the application site.

36. Therefore, it is likely that at least some of the use of the application site for walking,
jogging and cycling was not use that can be described as being ‘as of right’. The
degree of general recreational use as opposed to public rights of way type user is
an issue which requires further consideration.

General conclusion on use ‘as of right’

37.Therefore, it is not possible to conclude definitively whether use of the application
site for recreational purposes during the relevant twenty year period has been ‘as of
right’. The issues of the notices, use by University employees and students, and
use of the rights of way require further investigation.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

38.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities®.

39.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’®.

® R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
® R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord Hoffman
in R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER
385

Page 38



40.The applicant’s case is that the land has been used for a range of recreational
activities, including walking (with or without dogs), picnics, fishing, painting and
photography. A sample summary of the evidence of use submitted in support of the
application (at Appendix C) shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken
place.

41.The University’s position, based on the evidence of its employees, is that any use of
the application site has been confined to the footpaths or has consisted of a linear,
rights of way type use. The University denies that the application site has been
used for other recreational activities, such as picnicking or family games, and
suggests that the physical nature of the application site does not lend itself to such
activities.

42.The University’s evidence is therefore at odds the applicant’s evidence and this
would appear to be a further area of dispute which requires further consideration.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

43.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality
or of a neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to
define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified.

“neighbourhood(s) within a locality”

44.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been the
subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be applied.
In the Cheltenham Builders’ case, it was considered that ‘...at the very least,
Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that
could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a
sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge later went on to
suggest that this might mean that locality should normally constitute ‘some legally
recognised administrative division of the county’.

45.In cases where the “locality” is so large that it is difficult to show that the application
site has been used by a significant number of people from that locality, it will also
be necessary to consider whether there is a relevant “neighbourhood” or
“neighbourhoods” within the wider locality.

46. On the subject of neighbourhood, the Courts have held that ‘it is common ground
that a neighbourhood need not be a recognised administrative unit. A housing
estate might well be described in ordinary language as a neighbourhood... The
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged fto be a
neighbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohesiveness; otherwise the word
“neighbourhood” would be stripped of any real meaning’®.

" R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 90
® R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 92

Page 39



47.At part 6 of the application form (where the applicant is required to state his chosen

neighbourhood and/or locality), the applicants state “administrative area is
Canterbury, ward is St. Stephen’s ward, Canterbury and neighbourhoods are
Salisbury Road estate and Harkness Drive area”. In later correspondence, the
applicants state that their application relies upon the four neighbourhoods of the St
Michael's Road/Salisbury Road estate, the Harkness Drive estate, the Whitstable
Road/St. Thomas Hill area and the Roper Road area within the locality of the city of
Canterbury.

48.There can be little doubt that the City of Canterbury is a legally recognised

administrative unit and as such constitutes a qualifying locality for the purposes of a
Town Green application. In the Leeds Group? case, it was held that there was no
logical reason why the term ‘any neighbourhood’ should not include two or more
neighbourhoods. An applicant can therefore rely upon more than one
neighbourhood within a qualifying locality so the fact that the applicants in this case
rely upon four neighbourhoods is not, of itself, a problem.

49.Given the recommendation, it is not necessary to go into detail as to whether the

neighbourhoods relied upon by the applicant each fulfil the definition set out above.
Some of the neighbourhoods cited by the applicants refer to housing estates which
would appear to constitute qualifying localities, but others refer to geographical
areas which may not have such a strong degree of cohesion. In many respects, it
does not matter if not all of the neighbourhoods fulfil the legal criteria because all
that is required for registration of the land as a Village Green to succeed is that
there is at least one qualifying neighbourhood within the relevant locality. In this
case, it seems likely that there would be at least one qualifying neighbourhood,
although this is an issue that could be explored in further detail at a Public Inquiry.

“a significant number”

50.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial: ‘a

51.

neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of the
inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that the
land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’'®. Thus, what is a ‘significant number’
will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case depending upon
the location of the application site.

The applicant’s position is that use of the application site has taken place by a
significant number of the residents of the neighbourhoods within the locality. This
would certainly appear to be supported by the volume of user evidence submitted in
support of the application but also needs to be considered in the context of the
University’s assertion that use has generally been restricted to linear routes and
existing public rights of way.

® L eeds Group plc v Leeds City Council [2010] EWHC 810 (Ch)
"% R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 40



(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

52.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’ up
until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of the
application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above).

53.In this case, the applicants contend that use of the application site ‘as of right’
ceased in March 2011 when the University erected various notices on the
application indicating that recreational use was by virtue of the University’s express
revocable permission. The University’s witnesses confirm that new notices were
erected around the University campus in the spring of 2011 after staff became
aware that existing notices had been vandalised by graffiti.

54.1f the recreational use of a piece of land ceases to be ‘as of right' before an
application for the registration of the land as a new Village Green is made, the
applicant has a two year period of grace during which to make such an application
(see section 15(3)). In this case, use of the land ceased to be ‘as of right’ in March
2011, and the Village Green application was made shortly thereafter in April 2011.

55.Therefore, the application has been made well within the prescribed two-year
period of grace, and this test is therefore met.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

56.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. The twenty year period is calculated
retrospectively from either the date of the application or, where use of the
application site ceased to be as of right prior to the making of the application, the
date upon which use of the application site ceased to be ‘as of right’.

57.In this case, it has been established that the recreational use of the application site
as a whole ceased to be ‘as of right’ in 2011. The relevant twenty-year period is
therefore 1991 to 2011.

58.Despite the University’s assertion to the contrary, the user evidence submitted in
support of the application suggests that the application site has been used by local
residents for recreational purposes for a period in excess of 20 years.

Conclusion

59.As has been noted above, there is a serious dispute in this case as to whether the
application site has been used ‘as of right' throughout the relevant period. The
applicant’s case is that any notices on the application site were rendered illegible
through vandalism prior to the relevant material and remained so throughout that
period. Furthermore, the applicant’s evidence is that the site has been used for a
range of recreational activities in the requisite manner.

60.The University’s case, on the other hand, is that there have been permissive
notices in place on the application site during the material period (albeit that it
accepts that they may have been illegible during part of the relevant period) and

Page 41



61.

that any use of the application site as has taken place has largely been either in
exercise of existing Public Rights of Way or has been in the form of public rights of
way type use (i.e. following a defined route).

One of the inherent limitations of the user evidence questionnaires is that they
merely offer basic information about the recreational use of the local inhabitants
and, when a case turns on more detailed information as to the precise nature of that
use (particularly whether this has been in exercise of existing rights of way), they
are of limited assistance in establishing a detailed picture of recreational use.
Indeed, it is extremely difficult to determine cases which turn on matters of fact and
degree (of which this is one) on paper and, in many respect, these are best dealt
with by way of more detailed examination of the evidence in a public forum.

62.Although the relevant Regulations’ provide a framework for the initial stages of

processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with objections
etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a Commons
Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the application.
In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which are
particularly emotive or where the application turns on disputed issues of fact, for
Registration Authorities to conduct a non-statutory Public Inquiry'?. This involves
appointing an independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and report
his/her findings back to the Registration Authority.

63.Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in the

Whitmey' case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably need
to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the requisite
facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

64.1t is important to remember, as was famously quoted by the Judge in another High

Court case', that ‘it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land, whether in
public or private ownership, registered as a town green... [the relevant legal tests]
must be ‘properly and strictly proved’. This means that it is of paramount
importance for a Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a decision, it
has all of the relevant facts available upon which to base a sound decision. It
should be recalled that the only means of appeal against the Registration
Authority’s decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

65. Therefore, for the reasons given above, it would appear that the most appropriate

course of action would be for this matter to be referred to a Public Inquiry.

" Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008

"2 The Public Inquiry is referred to as being ‘non-statutory’ because the Commons Act 2006 does not
expressly confer any powers on the Commons Registration Authority to hold a Public Inquiry. However,
Local Authorities do have a general power to do any thing to facilitate the discharge of any of their
functions and this is contained in section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972.

"R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951 at paragraph 66

" R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1997] 1EGLR 131 at 134

Page 42



Recommendation

66.1 recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the case to clarify the
issues.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221513 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Countryside Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further
details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site
APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Sample summary of user evidence
APPENDIX D — Summary of University’s evidence
APPENDIX E - Plan showing locality

Page 43




614000992020
77| APPENDIXA:

N7 . - e
P ‘?!R Plan showing the application site

N =N 7 *
\;\\\ Q %\\?2’“ Q‘F{Ifﬁﬁ@l&ﬂ R

© T

) Eljot wTl 3

’ College )m
SRS SR
iversity of Kent .

t Canterbufy

({ ﬁHighIands‘ /,r .
\ l O

v )
g t? )
\\ oY
\».
‘dmu:&\
School \\}\ .

159000.00DDGG
15900092000

i *\'r»‘-’% Q:.- /e ‘..
SO ey

w{\: ‘%A@;?“Ag;lﬁ’m .- : 4"»
614000 000000

Land subject to Town Green application
- E known as Chaucer Field at Canterbury

5 /
Scale 1:5000

Page 44




FORM CAS APPENDIX B:
Copy of the application form

Commons_Act 2006: section 15

Application for the registration of land
as a new Town or Village Green

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority
indicating date of receipt: Application number:

NGRBES

CORBAL NS AT
KENT COUNTY
REGISTRATION Al
21 APR 20 VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

» All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.
o Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete
parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in

section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

e Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

e Thereis no fee for applications under section 15.

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority
Insert name of Commons
Registration Authority To the:

Kent County Council,
County Hall '
Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XX

Page 45




Note 2

if there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
separate sheet if necessary.
State the full litle of the
organisation if the applicant is a
body corporate or
unincorporate. If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email. If part 3 is not completed
all correspondence and notices
will be sent to the first named
applicant.

2, Name and address of the applicant

Name: Jeremy Barton

Full postal acress: [

(incl. Posicode)

Telephone number;  via representative

(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
{incl. national dialling code)

E-mail acdross: I

Note 3
This part should be completed if
Y representative, e.g. a solicitor,
is instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so all
correspondsnce and nolices will
be sent to the person or firm
named here. If you supply an
emaifl address in the box
provided, you may recejve
communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
parsons (e.qg. objectors) via
ematl,

3. Name and address of representative, if any
Name: - Ursula Harris
Firm: n/a (local residents association)

Full postal address:
(incl. Postcode)

(incl. national dialling co

Fax number:
{incl. national diafling code)

Note 4

For further details of the
requirements of an application
refer to Schedule 4, paragraph
9 to the Commons Regisiration
(England) Regufations 2008.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the [andowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made
under section 15(8):

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and
qualifying criterion applies to the case.
Section 15(2) applies: O
Section 15(3) applies: &
Section 15(4) applies: O

Page 46




*Section 15(6) enables any
period of statutory closure
where access o the land is
denied to be disregarded in
defermining the 20 year period.

If section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right’ ended and why:

The University started consultation with residents on the planning
application at the end November 2010. Objections were raised by
those residents using the land.

Subsequent to this the University erected signs on the land in March
2011 indicating that usage was under licence.

It is believed use as of right may have ended at the time the signs

were put up.

If section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

N/A

Note 5

This part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of at least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately identified
boundary. State the Land
Registry title number where
known.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of
which application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:
The Slopes, Lower Fields, The Orchards, University
Now all are agreed the area is known as Chaucer Fields

Location:

See map

Area is east of Harkness Drive/Chaucer College and North of
Salisbury & St Michae/’s Road.

South of University Road and ending at Eliot Foolpath.

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is already
registered Common Land):

Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the
land (at a scale of at least 1:2,500): vl

Page 47




Note 6

It may be possible to indicate
the locality of the green by
reference to an administrative
area, such as a parish or
electoral ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
{such as a village). If this is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
nelfghbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

Note 7

Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
registration here and enclose a
separate full statement and afl
other evidence including any
withess statements in support of
the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the locality {(or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

Administrative area is Canterbury

Ward is St Stephens Ward, Canterbury

Neighbourhoods are
o Salisbury Road estate (Salisbury Road and cul-de-sacs off it)
o Harkness Drive area (Harkness Drive and cul-de-sacs off it)

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000): E/

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green

See evidence of users.

Crucial Open Space

Used by local residents for generations

Protection of ancient hedgerow and local environment

It is clear from the evidence of over 100 witnesses that
colfectively they and others representing a significant number
of inhabitants have for generations indulged in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period in excess of twenty
years as of right.

e See atlached statement witness forms and exhibits as listed

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if

necessary. This information is

not needed if a landowner is
~applying to register the land as

a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

University of Kent at Canterbury
University Road

Canterbury

Kent

CT27NZ

Page 48




Note 9

List or enter in the form all such
declarations that accompany
the application. This can include
any written declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a letter), and
afso any stich declarations
made on the form itself.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the fand

N/A

Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
fand must be included for
voluntarily registration
applications. There is no need
to submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to which it was a
party but they should still be
listed. Use a separate sheet if
necessary.

10. Supporting documentation

See aftached

Note 11

List any other matters which
should be brought fo the
attention of the Registration
Authorily {in particufar if a
person interested in the land is
expecled to chalfenge the
application for registration). Full
details shotild be given here or
on a separate sheet if
necessary.

11. Any other information relating to the application

Council may be aware of planning applications in progress
Ref: CA/11/00528 & CA/11/00531 to Canterbury City Council.

Page 49




Note 12 12. Signature
The application must be signed
by each individual applicant, or
by the authorised officer of an
applicant which is a body
corporate or unincorporate.

Signature(s) of applicant(s):

Date: |7 A(TH_:\ H

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form fo:

The Commons Registration Team
Kent County Council
Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authority to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request
for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 50




£14000 w0

AR
A
N

]

Sy

%

Vi

Ar

E e
~

-,

L ~,

<
SR

d:

e

159000200

159500400

A




¢00¢

Sample summary of user

APPENDIX C
evidence

— 0661 pue 0661 — 9/61 Joumopue| Aq pakojdwg sojuold ‘Bunjoid Jeyi| ‘Buiyiepn Ao | Juesald — GoB | THVd T "Joid
‘aJnjeu ul aAnIqiyo.d Buibpajls ‘Bunjjem
JBABU JNQ S821J0U M8} B Uda(q sAem|e aAey alay | [euonealoal ‘yiom 0y Bunyjiepn a|geneA | ussald —Go6L | AYMMIHD D IN
1004Nd0D
[ley suods 0} ss829e. JO as Ap1eopn | wuesald — Gog L | IN
H1HOMS31
Jgelb yum, aoeyd ui subig Buniiepm Alypuoly | yueseid —Go6L | -HVHO 'V "SIN
Bunjjem Bop ‘Bunjjem yoos
pue aply ‘Buihiiagyoe|q ‘buibpals
‘Aejd 0} 818y} uaJp(Iyd UMO udX e} PIIYo
0S 10 yjuow jse| ay} ul paseadde subig os|e ‘p|Iyo e se spleydlo ul pakeld e se Ajleq | wesaid — G961 | IAINVLS M N
Buibpals
‘Buifeld uaipjiyo ‘Buryiem 6og Aire@ | yuesaud — 961 | IdINVLS T "SIN
soluold ‘aj|p|im pue Alauads AINVIY
S0g86L 2yl Buunp AjsiaAlun syl 1e paqIoAA Buifolua pue Bunjiem ‘Bupjiem Boqg | AjjeuoisessQ | juasaid — 1961 "V CSIN
sbuipuno.ins pue AINYIY
malA Buiholus ‘soluold ‘Bunjiem Boqg | Ajjeuoiseoaop ¢ - 1961 'q "SI
asIoJaxa ‘bunuied pue Buiyoleys
‘Aydeibojoyd ‘uoneAIaSqO BY|P|IM 113ssi1g
pue| ayj uo subis a|qiba|] oN ‘Buibpa|s ‘ualp|iyo yum bBuike|d palels J0N | ussald — 96| M SIN
(esn jo pouad
Aysianiun Ag pajoals Apjuadal sadljoN Allea uil Bunjjem 6op) pajels 10N paje}s 10N | ueasaid — €961 SIM3T g ‘SIN
e lleqyooy ‘seweb |leq ‘Buibpajs 19Vddvyd
Ul palano9 asay) Jng pue| ay) uo subis alopp | ‘BulAly auy ‘sotuoid ‘Bunoho ‘Bunjiepn Ap1eopn | wuesald — 1961 TSI
Angiajue)
jo smalA Aofus ‘uoneAIasqo ajp|Im ONIATNOMS
‘Sy|em Joj uaip|iyo Buniey ‘Buryiepn Ajyuopy | usesaud — 0961 "0 N
sojuold
‘Buiuuna ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buyjiepn | AjjeuoisedoQ | Juasald — 0961 A3 'S S
14VMIALS
Bunjiepm paje)s JoN | Juasaid — 0961 'S "IN
awi Jo yibusg| poys e Ajep
Joj }sed ay} ul swos ‘eoe|d ay} JoA0 ||e mou subig Bupiepn | mou Apjespn palels 10N | ¥3IHSI4 1IN
aAlIQ SSauwyleH aouelua wesaud - $00Z INOMON
ay} Buisn suaydeig 15 0} Mjem o} yyed ay} asn Bupnilepm | AjjeuoisesdQ ‘2961 — G761 T "SIN
(-930 siayjo Aq (uayepspun saniAlRoe "a’1) asn jo
asn ‘sabuajjeys ‘saoljou ‘H69) sjuswwon asn jo adA ) Kouanbaig | asn jo pouad aweN

"90UBpIAG Jey) Jo Alewwns ajdwes aAlsneyxa-uou e sapiaoid Ing (Jejo} Ul salieuuonsanb souspine
Jasn ggg aJe aiay)) uoneoidde ay) Jo poddns ul papiwgns 8ouUspIAS Jasn 8yl Jo ||e Jo Alewwns aAlsusyaidwod e jou si 8|gel siy] gN

Page 52




*AlISIBAIUN 8] 1B YIOA\ "90U82I| Japun pamojje

sojuold ‘yeses pue
aply ‘siayuod Bunos|joo ‘buibpals

ssa20e Bulje)s pajoala usaq aAey subis Ajjusday ‘ualp|iyo yum Buiheld ‘Buijiem boq Aospp | wussaud — )61 IIVYH D N
SNTEI Aeapn | yuesald — 0/61 | QYVMOH T JIN
ujlesy
uonealdal 11 Jusd3l AFHOV3d
Joj uaipjiyo Buye} ‘Bunjiem 6oq Inun Ajleq { -S0.61 1SN
"Jayoea] Ajis1aniun e sepn ‘Bupjiem Ajjeioadsa Alleuoisesoo NOSNIHDLNH
‘S9I)IAI}OR 2NSI9| JO SPUI ||B 40} pash pueT] Buluuni pue Bujiepn | mou ‘Ap@apn | Jusesald — 0461 'S CIN
ainsian Apeap | Juesald — 6961 | NOSEOA "9 N
Buibpais ‘s1exuod ypm buikeld NOLNNVLS
siseq Ajlep e uo sJayjo Aq asn paalasqQO ualp|Iyo ‘sapll 8joAo ‘Bunjiem BoQ Ajleq | wesalud — go6| TSI
Buiuuna Aunod ssouo pue
Bunoid A11aqg ‘uonexe|al ‘uoleAlasqo
ajlIp|im ‘Buijem ‘Buipu axiq ‘seiued
Aepyuiq ‘sdwed Buyew ‘Buiky d3INANL
8}y ‘sojudld ‘uaip|iyo yum buikeld paje)s JoN | Juasaid — 696 T 'SIN
Buibeloy yoam Jad advYMOH
‘ualp|iyo yum Buihed ‘Bupjiepn | sew [eieass | ussald — 961 "0 SIN
uaIp[IYd Yim sapy bulhyy 113A3dL
pue saweb |jeq buiAe|d ‘Bunjiem Bog Aleq | wesaid — gogL | "V "SIA pue I
‘g|doad Jo Jequinu
af.e| e 1o} Ajluswe |Bo0| pasn [|om B S| pueT] BuiA} ayy ‘Yeas pue apiy ‘soluoid
"UOI}OBUUOD JUBLIND ON "€-166) PUB 6-8961 @48} ‘ualpliyo yum buikeid ‘Bunyjiem Apjoam
palojdwa uay} ‘AJISIBAIUN BY) 1B JUspn]s B SBAN [euonealdal ‘AlsiaAiun o) Bupjiepn uay) ‘Ajleq | wuesaid — g961 INVM 'd "SIN
‘pue| 8y} Jeau aq 0}
Alleoyoads Loz ul eale ay) 0} 3oeq paro “L10Z d3aMo0dd
UoJel ,91 punose pue| ay) uo psajoals subis en|g [ooyos 03 Bunjiem ‘Bupjiem boq Apeq | yuesaud — gog| T "SI pUB I
"sieak O uey} 8J0W 1o} SUBPISaI |EI0|
Ag pasn Bun| usalb pue aoeds uado uenodwi | sead) }sbuowe pue mopeaw ybnoayy
ue s| pueT ‘bulpAololow ou bunels ubis y Bunjiem ‘Alisianiun o} BulpAn Ajleq | wesald — 7961 | YIMHVYC ‘T N
'0]8 sydomally Buiyojem ‘Buibpals ‘seweb aaqsti4
‘s)|em 10} pasn sieak Ot Jano 1o} ajdoad |00 1o} ualip|iyo HIAMHVYC
aoeds uado pajnjjodun ‘a|igenjeA e usaq sey pue | BunoA yum pue asioiaxa Joj Bujieps | AjjeuoisesdQ | jussaud — 7961 ‘N "SIN
‘0861 pue 996 usamiaq Jeaumopue| Aq paiojdwg
'900¢ PuUe 0861 Usamiaq pue| 8y} asn jou pig ualp|iyo yum Buikeld ‘Buijjepn Aeam | Juesaid — 996l | AFT1AIY 'H N
Z00Z PUE 0861 U8BM}B] pue| 8y} 8sn jou pig uaJpliyo yum buikeld ‘Buiyien Ao | Juesaid — 9961 | A31AIY T "SIN
"saljiAljoe Jo abuel
e 10J siayio Aq asn Ajiep paatesqQ ‘Buiuesw su soweb buie|d SYILYM
10 Jeg|o jou ‘niyelb Aaeay yum ubis uayolq jlews |  ‘Buloko ‘Buibpals ‘Bunjiem ‘Buiuuny Apj@apn | Juasald — 96| v USIN
‘98 — €861 Pue 8/ — /61 Pug| 3y} asn jou pig Buimelp ‘Buiuuni ‘Buisijepn Ale@ | ussaid —Go6l | LHOINM "4 'SIN

Page 53



1002 — 0261 Ausianiun Aq paloidwg | BulAj) ey [euoiseso0o ‘Bunjiem Ajuiep Apeopn | wesald — G611 T IN
uoljeAISSqo
SJIIpP(IM ‘soludld ‘UBIP[IYD UM
‘awll} jey) Jaye pue BuiAe|d ‘Buibpa|s ‘uoneadal pue | Ajjeuoisedsdo
0} Joud Ajjeuoises20 Inq 200Z — 8861 Ajlep pasn as101axa 1o} Bupjiem ‘Bupjiem boq mou ‘Ajleq | ueseud — GJ61 N3I3IM T "SIN
‘payoAal Bq
p|no2 @oua2l| 8yl 1ng a1jgnd ay) Aq pasn aq p|nod | smala Buifolus ‘Bunjjem ‘uonealasqo | Apjoam aoim) NOSAYVHIOIY
pue| ay} 1ey) Bunels sa10u e aq 0] pasn aiay | all|p|Im ‘ualp(iyo yum Buike|d 1o Apjespn | ussaud — /61 A SIN
‘AlIs1aAlun ay) Aq paumo A9 J1an0 smaln Bulholus NOSQYVHIOIY
sem pue| ayj 1ey) bunels aoijou e mes obe siea A ‘ualpiyo yum buiheid ‘Buyiepn Apospp | wuesaud —GJ61 | AN
ualp|iydo umo Aq punoibAeld
SaljIAlJOE |euoljealdal |eiouab se Ajoaisuaixa pasn ‘Buibpals
Jo} 9jdoad snolawnu Ag pasn usaq sey pue| ay | ‘BuiA)y ey ‘Buioho ‘Bunyiepn | AjleuoisesoQ | Jussald — G61 NEENRSEIN
TIVANIA
smaln BulAolus pue Bupjiepp Apeopn | wuesald — G661 'S "SI
sndwed wouy/o} ybnolyy bunpno Jo sbop sinusayo/siaxuod bunoid ‘seweb | Ajjeuoiseddo
Bupjjiem oy Ajulew pue| Buisn siaylo usas aneH [leq BuiAe|d ‘ualip|iyo yum Buyiepn mou ‘Ajleq | yusseiud — GJ61 T13IHS "1 'SIN
"eJOJ} [BO0| Bunuied pue
Buimelp ‘spoe} Bulysly yum Bunseo NILIVIA
aonoeld ‘Buiyorem paiq ‘BuiA sy | Ajjeuoiseod | wesaid — /61 | "M TSN PUB I
syonp Buipas) ‘Bupjiem Alyiuow
‘BuiAly 8y ‘uaipliyo yum Buikeld | mou ‘Apjeapn | Juesald — /61 | SIMHVH | 'SIN
Yoam Jad Mong3yd
smaln Bulfolus ‘Bupjiepn | sewn [edanss | Jussald — /61 7 SIN
ajlIplim
‘obe sAep maj} e 921j0u B MES }S.l} | pue eunej ‘main Buifolus ‘Bupyjiepn Ao | wesaid — 261 | MONgG3y ‘D N
Ainqueiuen
JBA0 SMaIA Buliwpe ‘ualp(iyo
‘Auadoud ajeald si 1 Buiwieo aoe|d ul s82110N yum Buihe|d ‘Bunjiem ‘Buiuuny Aeq | wesaid —¢/61L | JIAVA 'd p.ASY
"Jaquiawal '0}o so|dde
ueo | se sieaA Auew se 1o} 0S usaq jou pey | ‘siaquod Buios|oo ‘buibpals ‘soluoid
pue 9|qibo| jou a1om subis JaljJe] ~aousdl| Japun ‘BuiA)} | ‘quapnis se AjisioAiun Apjoam NOLYVY
sI ssa2oe Bune)s paleadde aney sadijou Ajjuassy Buissaooe ‘Buisiolaxa ‘Bunjiem Boq o) Ajleq | wesald — ¢/61 4 "SI
Jawwns
ul aJow 113H139g
Bunjjepm ‘Alyuoyy | uesaid —¢/61 "H "SIN
Bunilepy | AjjeuoiseooQ | yueseid — 1761 | ATTAVO 'S SIN
Bunjiep Ayeep | uesaid — 161 | ATTAVO ‘W N
Ainguajue) JaAO SMAIA
Bulwpe ‘seweb |jeq ‘uonealasqo Alyiuow SN3IAILS
"JISIA A18As uo pue| ay) Buisn si1aylo paaIasqO alnjeu ‘Buibps|s ‘Bupjiem ‘soludid mou Ajleq | wesaid —z/61 TSI

Page 54



Bbuiuebboqo) ‘buiAe|d ‘Buipeal

suebboqo}

oom e

‘BuiA)y ayy ‘Buiyiequns ‘sojuold ‘Bupjiem 6og ‘soluoid ‘BulA)y ey ‘Bunjiem Boq | sawi |eleAsS | uesald — GGl S3INOr "0 'S
" _payonal aq Aew yoiym aousdl| Ag asn,
al dnjnd saonjou Apusday "spods [00YOS "SaYIq Bunjjiem Ajep
Buipu pue Buike|d uaipjiyo ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buibpsls | [euonealoal ‘uaip|iyo Yum Buipu xiq | uo 9/6| usay) SITLLIHM
‘Bunjoruold ‘Buibbol ‘Bunjiem siayjo usag ‘soluoid dnoub younyo ‘Bunjiem 6oqg | Ajjeuoisedo | juasald-096| TSI
Ajleuoiseado
sg|dde Mou
Buidwnios ‘Buiyolays ‘Buyoiuaid | ‘0g. 01 Apeam
pue| Buifolus g Bunpjiem Ajjuanbaly sieyjo ueag ‘Buiysyy puod ‘Bupjiem Boq ‘c9.01 Ajleq wesald-¢G6L | TI1ASNY 'O N
ai10o4N3d
Bupoiuoid g Bupjjem siayjo usag Buyiepn | esuodsal oN 666L-Yv61 Q"SI
(1 10z yote) parejnaaio alom swuoy uoneoidde | Buiyoiem puaiq ‘Aydelbojoyd ‘Buibpals
uaalis) abe||IA 8y} aouls dn jnd usaq aAey Sa2110N ‘ualpiyo yum buikeid ‘Buyiepn Ap@opa | wesald — 9761 | MOTION T 'SIN
uasald — 9oz AlsiaAlun
Aq pakojdwg ‘pasiolgnd usaqg sey uonesidde sdweo Buipjing
uaalg) abe||IA 8yl 92UlsS pa)oala uaaq aAey ‘Burpho ‘buibpais ‘soluaid ‘Buibbol
S92I110N /002 — 966 UdaM]}aq 8SN [BUOISBID ‘syjem Bop ‘sjiel; ainjeu ‘Buyiepn Apfeapn | wesaid — 9761 | MOTON 'H 'S
Buibpajs ‘ualp|iyd yum bunjjiem
‘Aisianiun ayy Ag paAojdwa Ajjuaiing | ainsig| ‘AlISISAIUN e YIom 0] Bujiepp Apeq | wesaid-9/6L | AMO1ON 'S N
"L LOZ YoJe ul pajoals subis
MaN 8|q1b9||1 A||e10] usy} pue iielb ul palsAod
aweoaq ubis sIy} Jng ‘pue| ay} asn 0} uoissiwiad smaln BuiAolus ‘seaweb |legmous
ajdoad Buinlb peoy Aingsijes Jo pus ay} 1e ‘soluold ‘syjjem ainjeu ‘Buibpa|s AYYIHD
yjedjooy o1ignd ayj uo ubis e sem aiay)} sieak 1o ‘ualpiyo yum Buiheld ‘Bunyjepn Apeapn | wuesaud — 9761 'd "SIN
salled Aepyuiq
s,ualp|iyo ‘buiyoleys ‘Bunjiepn | Ajjeuoisess | juesaud — 9/61 HMIY " N
‘Alsianiun
ay1 Aq pakojdwa Apuaiind (1 1.0z yote)
¥ooM ]SB| 8] UIYlIM pajoala uaaq aney Sa2l10N (Ausianiun ayy 0} Ajurew) Bupjiepn Apeapn | wesaid — 9761 | NOITIVIA 'Y "4
‘siseq Ajiep e uo J|asAw se sesodind awes
8y} Joj pue| ayj asn sinoqybiau pue spusuy Auep BuiAy a1y ‘Bunjiepn a|qeule) | yuasald —9/61 S310Y 'V IN
ualp|iyo yym Buikeld ‘Bupyiepn a|qene/ | jussaid —9/6L | SIT10Y 1 °SIN
(102 g4v4a109
[udy//yoJely) yjuow jse| 8y} ul pajoale SadljoN Bunyepn Apeq | yuesaud — 9/61 N IN
uoliexejal g4dv4a109
‘ualpiyo yum bBuiheld ‘Bunjiem 6og Ajlep eoim] | yuesaid — 9761 TSI
"UMBIPYIIM g p|nod
asn Jo Jybu sy jeyy Buiels seonou mau ¢ peoljou NOL1SNI©Ad3
aAeY Inqg (s|gepealun jsow|e) ad1jou B Uaas aABH Bunjiepn Algiuopy | wesaid —G/61 I

113SSvd

Page 55



‘sbop yyum * Bupjjem siayjo usss "|IoUNOY 0} T1INOVd
uoneoldde Buiuued saye subis dn ind Ayisiaalun Bunjiepn | Ajjeuoiseso | jussaud-¢/61 ‘H N
‘spods jooyos sdoysiquoly
‘Jojuim ul Buibpais ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bupoiuoid
‘BuiAe|d uaupjiyo ‘BuloAo ‘Buiuuny siayjo usag uaJpjiyopuelb yum buifed AISYHIANNNS
‘a1eAlld ® 8oua2l| Aq asn pue| Aes 0] S82110N ‘ualp|iyo yum sotuoid ‘Bunjiem boq | aiow 1o Ajleq uesald-z/61 SIN % JIN
sojuold g Bunjjem s1ayjo uaag soluoid ‘Bunyiepn | Ajjeuoisessp wesaid-z/61 SNDINAr a
ualp|iyo alow
ypm Buikerd ‘BuiAfy ayy ‘Bunjjem Bop siaylo usag smaln Bulholus ‘Buibpajs ‘Bunyjiepn 10 Apjoapn | jusesaud-z/6L NHOCr T "SI
alnjeu
Buifolus ‘Buisioiexa ‘Buizijeloos ‘Aydesboioyd
‘BuiAly ayy ‘Bupporuold ‘Bunjiem : Apueisuod siayjo alnjeu ¥ smala BuiLolua Ajyiuow Jo ANV TYIHS
usasg 010z xoidde dn 1nd saonou Alsianiun pue Bupjiem ‘uaipiyo yum Buiheld | Apjoem ‘Ajieq wesaid-z/61 ‘N SIIN
NOSNIHOL1NH
Bunjiem ‘Buluuna sieyjo usag Aydeiboloyd ‘Bupjiem ‘Buiuuny Apospp | wesaud — 061 'S N
‘Buike|d
ualp|iyo ‘sbop Buisiolexa ‘Bupjjem siayjo ussg Alyiuow
‘pabus|jeyo Jo paddols usaq Jonsu aAey asn MOU Yoom e
sieak | ¢ Jano Inqg ‘subis dn ind AjsiaAlun L 1LOZ uaJp|iyo yum Buikeid ‘Bunjiepn | sewly [elansg wesald-0/61 SNILY Y IN
sylem
[1I°gen|q ‘soluoid ‘syjem [euonealoal Ajep
Buiuunu ‘Buibpajs ‘Bupjoiuoid ‘BuiAjy ‘mous ul Buibpals ‘siayuod sownawos | (Aeme paaow) NNVIANTTHIH
ayy ‘BuiAeld uaup|iyo ‘Bunjiem Bop siayjo usag Bunoo|j0o ‘uaipjiyo yum buihe|d NEETYY 6002-6961 "3 SN
sdnoub ainjeu |0o0Yyos ‘saljiAloe |BID0S SjUapNn)s ISTSENT, Yoom e
‘soluoid ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bunjiem siayjo usag | 0] Ss820e ‘alnjeu Bulfolus ‘asiolox] | sewl] |eloAss wesald-6961 | ¥I1LNG T N
"‘Buiuunu sojuold uoseas
Jo} ) @sn jooyos sdoysiqyoly Aydeibojoyd © BulAiiagyoe|q ‘1ejuim ul Buibpals | uo Buipuadap
pue Bunjjem Bop snid saniAnoe swes ul | ‘BulA)} a3y ‘ualpiyopuelb ¥ uaipjiyo Apjeam
sJay)o usag -Ausitaniun Aq dn jnd subis Ajjuaday yyum Buiheld ‘Buibbol ‘Buryiepn Jo Aleq | juesaud -gog | IANVM N
Jajuim ul buibpajs ‘BuiA|) oy
‘Buiyoiem ainjeu ‘buibbol ‘BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘Bunis
‘Bunyiem siayjo 9ag ‘oouadl| Aq asn ‘Auadoid Aydeuibojoyd ‘uaipjiyo Apeam ANVTHIHS
ajeAud al 010z paoejdal saonjou Alsianiun yum Buiferd ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bunjiepp mou Ajleq esald-g96 | TIN
Buiuunu J21UIM
‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buihe|d ‘Bunjiem siayjo usag ul Buibpajs ‘saweb |jeq ‘Bunjiepp Ajleq | uasalid — 9961 HINN AL SIN
‘Buiuunu 1oy 31 @sn jooyog sdoysiquoly Buiddip puod
‘Buyoiuold ‘BuloAo ‘Buiuuns ‘Bupjiem siayio usag | ‘Bulhjf ayy ‘ualpjiyopuelb ¥ uaip|iyo JONVYYLS
‘pue| pasn |is ajdoad nq +sJA Qg 40} dn SB2110N ypm soluold ‘ainses|d Joy Bupjiepn Aoapn | wuesaud — 9961 WV SIN
suods |0oyos 4o} pasn ‘Bupjjem
Bop ‘Buiuunu ‘Bupjiem siayjo usag “syjedjooy YoM JONVYLS
pue Aems|puq 0} seauesus Aq Aoeald Jo sa8o10N 0} Bupjjem ‘ainses|d Joj Bujiepn Ajeq | uesalid — 9oL I

Page 56



SIayl0 ".paxoAal 8q Aew a0uddl|, 8l S8JII0N Bupjiem jeuonealdas ‘Bupjiem boqg Areg | 1uesaid-0g61 d N
Buiquio aan
‘Buibpajs ‘Buijiem Bop ‘Buihly ey NVHONINYIG
‘Ajlep sJayjo uaag ‘Bununy 16uny ‘seswebjeq ‘Bujiepn | Apream/Alieq wesald-6/61 "3 "SIN
Bunjiem Aydeibojoyd Apeam
Bop ‘Buife|d uaip|iyo ‘Bunjjem siayjo usag ‘BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘Bunjiepn mou ‘Ajlieq | wesaid —g/61 N3TIV L d
uaip|iyopuelb pue uaip|iyo
asn |euoljealdal SIaYjo usas | yym ainjeu Bulholus ‘Bunjiem ainsio] Appeap | wesaud-g/61L | SINOOY ‘d 4N
BuiAe|d Mou
‘Bulfoho ‘Buisiiernos ‘bunjjem Bop siayjo usag Buixejas ‘pliyo se BuiAeld ‘einjeu SS9| ‘pIyYo
‘'sieah maj ise| ul diysiaumo Ajisioniun Jo saonoN | Buuojdxa ‘Bunjiem ‘Buiuuna ‘Buioln se Ajleq | uesaid — 961 | AYYTIHD "L 1IN
Bupjiem jeuonealidal ‘uaip|iyopuelb TIVAN3IM
BuipAo ‘[leqioo} ‘bBunjiem sisyio usag ypum Buikeld ‘Bunjjem Bog Apjeapn | 1usseaud-g/gL S SIN
Buiuunui 929aqsli4 g seweb|eq ‘sojuold Yooam
‘Buljoho ‘Bupjiem Bop ‘Bunjiem sisylo usag Ajiwey ‘Bulpho ‘buibbol ‘Bujieps | B sewny ¢ 1o g esald-G/61 IAIAN T SN
spods |ooyos ‘|ied) ainjeu Jawuwns
pajowold Aysianiun ‘Bunjjem Bop ‘Buisiolaxe Apybiuypioy
‘Bunjiem s18yjo usag "ssadoe pey shemie sey spuauy 9 Ajlwey yjm Smala ‘J9JUIM TI3AMLNYD
AJunwwo9 |eo0] Inq subis dn ind AyisiaAiun L Loz | 9 @oeds Buikolus ‘Buixejal ‘Bupjiepn ul AlyIuon wesald-G/61 DS
Bunjoiuoid ‘BulAly ayy ‘Bulphd ‘Bupjiem alow 113SSvg
Bop ‘Bunjiem siayio usag “Ajuadsas dn subig BulAly ayy ‘Bunjiepn 10 Apjeapn | 1usseaud-GJ6L M SN
Buiquies ‘buiuuny ‘BulAly ayy ‘ssweb ualpjiyopuelb
lleq ‘bupjiem siayjo usag -Apuadsas dn ind seonoN Q ualpiyo yum Buifeld ‘Bunjiepn Apeopn | wesalid-y/61 9OVIS V
Bunyoid
a|dde ‘Bunjjem Bop ‘soluold ‘Buiquiio
Buibpa|s aal) ‘Buibpajs ‘Buljpho ‘Bulk)y euy pIIyo se
‘0aqsli4 ‘|leqioo} ‘Buiyoluold ‘Buloho ‘Bunjiem ‘BuiAiiagyoe|q : ualp|iyd UMo yiim Ajiep ‘sieah
sJay)o usag -uonedidde Buiuueld aouis dn subig | BuiAeid ‘piiyo se Buyjem pue Buike|d Jano pauep | wesaid-y/61 | NILYVIN T "SI
awoy ya|
Bunjjem pue Buihe|d saijiwey Jajuim ul Buibpajs | uaJpjiyo mou
‘Bunpjiem Bop siayjo usag ‘| Loz dn ind sadioN ‘ualp|iyo yum saweb ‘Bunjiepn | SS9l ‘AlYIuon esald-g/61 SINIS 'Y "SIN
"SaLIBA
Buike|d ‘Bunjiem ‘Aeam
sJayjo usag ‘Aladoud ajeAlid al $82110U U829y Buiep 10 Ajyluop wesald-g/61 | IoAdNN1d AN
Buife|d Alleuoisesoo
‘Bupjiem Bop ‘Bupjiem siayjo ueag "9audl| JBpun MOU ‘alow NOLSNIOA3
asn % pue| ajeAld AjisiaAlun a4 subis mau ¢ pliyopuelb yum Buijpho ‘Bunjepn 10 Ajyiuop wesald-G/61 "SI\ pue "IN
a9aqsuy buiAed ‘Buoiuoid ‘BuiA}y ey ‘Buiuund
‘Bunjiem s18y}0 UBaS ‘PaXOAaI 8Q P|NOI dsn Bupjiem Bop ‘smain aJow
pue pue| 8yeAud a1 seonou AysiaAlun |LL0Z/0L0Z Buikolus ‘Buihiiagyoe|q ‘Buniepm Jo Ajyuoly | jueseud-4/61 | SINVITIIM I N

ualp|iyo yum buikeld

Page 57



Ajisianiun

0} Bupjlem ‘uaip|iyo yum sepu NVINIYOS4
Buife|d ‘BurpAo ‘Bunjjem Bop siayio usag ayIq ‘Ajlwe) yyim g umo uo Bunjiepn ADjoopn | 1usseaud-9g6 L "9 SN
SJ9Xu0d Bunos||0o
Buife|d ‘BulAly ey ‘mous ul Buibpajs ‘buljoAo x BunoA Aly ANOTOWN
‘Bupjoruold ‘Buibpajs ‘BulpAo ‘Bunjiem sisyio usag uaym BuiAe|d uaipjiyo ‘Bunjiepn | Juow/Apaapn asald-9861 D 'SIN
Buiuunu Joy pue| esn jooyog sdoysiquoly buikeld Sy|lem
‘Jajuim ul Buibpajs ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buljoho ‘Bunjiem alneu ‘Buiuuni ‘Jayuim ul Buibpa|s JLIHM
SJ9Y)0 USaS "0S Jo syjluow g ise| ul saonopN | ‘Aydesboyoyd ‘Buloho ‘soluold ‘syiepn Ajleq Juesald-gg6 1 "SI pue "IN
Jayuim ul buibpa|s ‘einieu bulkolus
‘Buiuunu ‘sysiioAo ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘BulAly ayy siayjo Buizijeloos
U99g '90Uddl| Japun asn pue aleAld aJ paniwgns Aunwwo? ‘BulpAo‘Aydesboloyd NIMOVINON
uonesiidde Buiuue|d aouo dn nd saon0N ‘sSplol} SSOJO. YIoM 0] YIeAA Ajleq juasald-gge L 'S "SIN
MOU SS9|
Bunjoid woolysnw ‘sojuoid | ‘ualpiyo yum 113M939
Bunjjem sieyjo usag ‘ualpiyo yum bulheid ‘Buyiepn Ajusnbal juesald-¢£g61 ‘N 'S\
uaIp[IYo Yim BuioAo HILSVONVT
Buife|d ‘Buiuuna ‘Bupjiem ‘Bulpho siayjo usag ‘ualp|iyo yum BuiAeid ‘Bunjem Boq | Apjoem aoim | esald-£861 N SIN
uaJpjiyd ypim spualy yim bupjiem ‘BuljoAd d3LSVONY
Buife|d ‘Buiuunu ‘Bunoho ‘Bunjiem Bop siayjo usag ‘ualp|iyo yum buihed ‘Bunjiem Boq | Apleam/Alieq esald-£861 oI
Jajuim ul Buluueboqoy ualp|iyo ypm Apjoam
‘soluold ‘BuljoAo ‘Bunyiem Bop siayjo ussg sojuold g saweb ‘Buibbol ‘Bunjiepn 1se9| 1y | 1uoesald-¢ge| IAIAN N N
Jeak
Sawig-¢ USIA
Buiuunu BuiAy a1y uaym mou
A1unod ss019 1o} 8sn jooyos sdoysiqyody “Bulhy ‘Buisijeroos ‘soluoid ‘buiddip puod Q J19p|o Sse
ayy ‘soluaid ‘Buiquijo aaly ‘Bunjiem ‘Buljpho siayio ‘Buibpajs ‘Buiyorem paiq ‘Buiquip | Appaam ‘pliyo
usag ‘Ausieniun jo ued si pue| aJ subis Jusoay 99l ‘saweb [jeq ‘Bupjiem ‘BuljohD se Ajleq Juesald-zg6 L AJUvd rIn
SS900E Sk asn
syuapnys ‘BuiAe|d ualpjiyd ‘Bunjjem sieyjo usesg Buyiep FAEETY 1uesald-zg6 | T4 r
[led ainjeu Buimojjo) ‘buiquio aauy ‘buiyoiem [led ainieu ‘Buyjem bop
pJig ‘Buipho ‘sbop Buisiotaxa ‘Bunjiem siayjo | ‘soluoid ‘Buiddip puod ‘BuiAiiagyoe|q Apeam
usag ‘paleaddeal 8ouadl| Aq asn olgnd a1 subig | ‘BulAly auy ‘Buloko ‘seweb suaip|iyd uey] alop wesald-zg6L | AIISNITIG W
BuipAo Apjoam
Buiuuni ‘soluold ‘Buiquuio aa4) ‘Buibpals | ‘siequod Bunoa|joo ‘Buibpsls ‘Buiddip 0} Ajlep
‘BuiA)) ayy ‘Buibbol ‘seweb ||eq ‘Bupjem siayjo puod ‘soluold ‘BulAj) ayy ‘Buljquiel wouj ‘Jeak
usag ‘Alisieniun wou paseadde subis maN | ainjeu ‘ualpiyo yum saweb ‘Bupjepn Jano pauep | wesaid-1g6L | ATTVE M S

Buiuunu 1o} 31 8sn |00Y2S
sdoysiquoay -Buixejas ‘BuiAeld ualpjiyo ‘Buiuuny
‘Aydeuboioyd ‘Buyoluaid ‘Buipho ‘Buibbol ‘Buryiem

spusLy g Ajwey yym

SATLLIHM

Page 58



APPENDIX D:
Summary of objector’s evidence

Below is a summary of the evidence contained in the statements
accompanying the University’s objection to the application.

Mr. P. Czarnomski has been the Director of Esates since 2005 and is
responsible for the management of the land and buildings on the university
campus. He frequently inspects the campus grounds as part of this role.
There are signs at every entrance to the university indicating that access is by
virtue of a revocable permission. The university does not have any formal
policy regarding the notices but it is understood that they were first placed to
mark university property soon after its formation in the 1960s. A plan found in
the Estates archives dated 1989 shows the location of these signs. The read
“The University of Kent at Canterbury hereby gives notice that the land is
private property and any access by members of the public is by licence only
and may be revoked at any time”. It is (and has not been since 1989) possible
to access land owned by the university without passing a prominent sign
stating that the land is private. During a site inspection early in 2011, it was
noted that some of the signs had been vandalised and Mr. Czarnomski
instructed their repair. The only evidence of use witnessed on site is by
students using the land to provide a short cut to and from the housing areas
south of the land. Members of the public have occasionally been observed
walking dogs but only on footpaths or desire lines. A hay crop grown on the
land was harvested on an annual basis and access ways were mown through
this to enable students to continue to use the land as a short cut. Mr.
Czarnomski cannot recall any point when the whole of the land was closed.
University Road is closed once a year to preserve its private status but this
would not prevent pedestrian access from other points. There are parts of the
land that have been effectively closed due to works on the land — e.g. in
Jan/Feb 2011 heavy machinery was used to effect drilling in the lower parts of
the fields and part of the land was fenced off. There are no records of any
formal permission being granted and any requests have been dealt with
informally; a local dog walking group sought consent to walk on the university
land about 2/3 years ago.

Mr. P. Brown was employed by the university between 1984 and 2008, during
which time he was responsible for Estates staff involved with the maintenance
of university property. Aware that a number of dog walkers use the footpaths
on a regular basis but their use is generally confined to the paths. The land is
also used by students as a short cut. Mr. Brown has never seen any ball
games or picnics, but when it snows there is a hollow that is used by students
and members of the public for sledging. Other than in relation to the planting
of memorial trees, no one has approached the university regarding permission
to use the fields in any particular way. Throughout his employment at the
university, Mr. Brown recalls that the fields were used to grow hay and, when
the hay was high, access routes were mown through it. Users tended to stick
to these routes as it would have been difficult to walk through the hay. Signs
were in place when Mr. Brown began his employment in 1984. They were
replaced in 1989/90 at every access point indicating that the land was private

Page 59



and that use was by revocable licence. All access points have always been
marked with clear signs.

Mr. J. Burton was employed by the university between 1983 and 2005 as
Director of Estates. During the time of his employment, all access points in
and out of university-owned land were marked with clear signs informing the
public that the land was private property. Part of the fields are heavily wooded,
whilst other parts are rough with trees planted and are therefore unsuitable for
ball games or other similar activities. Mr. Burton has seen members of staff
walking on the footpaths but no significant use by the public. He cannot recall
the fields ever being used for picnics or by people other than students sitting
out in the sun.

Mr. M. Woods was employed by the university between 1975 and 2011 in
relation to grounds maintenance. Throughout his employment, he spent much
of the working day walking around the campus. From the start of his
employment, all areas of the land not too densely covered by trees were used
for hay cropping. It would not have been very easy to pass over the hay in late
spring or early summer as the grass would have been too tall and dense. A
path was mown through a section of the field so that those using the land as a
short cut did not trample the hay. During his employment, the land was
regularly used by dog walkers. Both students and dog walkers kept to the
footpaths and desire lines. An area of land below Eliot College is used by
students for recreational purposes as the grass is kept short and it is a
pleasant place to sit in fine weather. It is possible that this area is used by
members of the public. By contrast, the fields are rough and uneven and
though people use them as a short cut, Mr. Woods cannot recall seeing
anyone sitting out in the fields. Green signs were erected in the late 1970s at
university access points. Cannot recall graffiti being a major problem in the
1980s/90s but it began to increase in the 2000s. In 2001, soil drilling closed
part of the application site by Chaucer College.

Mr. M. Brealey has been employed by the university since 2002 in relation to
maintenance and has been responsible for ensuring that the signs remain
intact, clean and clearly visible. In February 2011, his team was asked to clear
graffiti and replace damaged signs. This involved the erection of temporary
signs and new signs were erected in April with the same wording and
locations. From late February, signs on the southern part of the field were
regularly vandalised or removed and broken. No other signs on the campus
suffered the same level of sustained damage. The amount of damage was
such that staff were instructed to attend to the signs on a daily basis. Mr.
Brealey has never seen any person playing ball games or sitting on the grass.
He has only ever seen people using the land as a short cut or for dog walking.
There is a lot of dog fouling over the land and as such it is not suitable for
picnics or family activities. There is an alternative area of land to the south of
Eliot College adjacent to the fields which students tend to use for socialising.

Ms. C. Ifill has been employed by the university since 2007 as a carpenter.

During the spring of 2001, she was engaged in attending to signage along the
southern side of the Chaucer Fields. From later February and early March the

Page 60



signs at the bottom end of the fields were frequently damaged, removed or
defaced. No other signs were damaged in this way. Ms. [fill has only every
observed people walking across the land along the footpaths or worn tracks
across the fields (using as a short cut or dog walking). Students use an area
to the left of the fields for socialising, but the fields themselves are rough with
trees dotted about and unsuitable for lawful sports and pastimes.

Mr. A. Turner has been employed by the university since 2004 as a
carpenter. He first visited the filed in March 2011 on a frequent basis to repair
the signs. The only people he saw using the land were dog walkers and
university students who generally kept to the footpaths.

Mr. L. Stevenson has been employed by the university since 2000, initially as
a security officer and latterly as security manager. Until spring 2011, there
were very few reported problems on the fields. Until the Village Green
application was made, the only people using the fields were dog walkers or
people taking a short cut to or from the university campus. From about March
2011, he received various reports that signs were being vandalised or stolen.
This has been a continued problem not experienced anywhere else on the
campus.

Mr. G. Hirst is a chartered surveyor who has worked with the university since
2006. He was responsible for arranging the hay crop taken between 2009 and
2011 and this involved several visits to the site in relation to his work. He only
ever saw students using the land as a short cut.

Mr. G. Ridgen is a farmer who was engaged by the university to take hay
crops between 1981 to 1986 and again in 2010. In a good season, hay can
grow to 2 to 3ft. As the hay grew, the university cut paths through the fields to
avoid it being trampled. People respected the pathways and did not trample
the hay. Whilst cutting hay in 2010, he was aware of people frequently
passing every 5 — 10 minutes. These were generally dog walkers or students
passing through.

Mr. J. Maxwell is a partner at the university’s solicitors (Farrer and Co). he
produces with his statement a copy of a letter dated 7" April 1990 from a Mr.
Dickinson [who was the applicant in relation to the previous VG application] to
Kent County Council quoting the wording of the notices erected after the 1989
application was made. A later letter from a local resident encloses an image of
the wording of the signs and is dated April 1990 which suggests that the
notices were erected in the spring of 1990.

Page 61



000000 OlOOGQL

APPENDIX E:
Plan showing locality

I
7

LS

e

r % st
c 1

Playing Fiald

gu“"
o

> 75
}.‘. ‘a-.'ﬂ’

615000

615000 000000

e i — ST
S USRS
A 5

R

PO

R
T
gl
,_g'
AR

w
’\ N =
\\‘.'.\-"'-- @
it =
IR <3
QD=
= £
wnsz
—
193]

Hillmead

)

of Kent
ry

ty

614000 "

613000 000000

=
o7 -
-‘ 2
© ‘m € Q/
L@
3 2
o oy (=
g Ve WP 5 A .
g N\ & 4 N, SISO
..5\’ S <“ et rE
3 > -3"@"&%@?“"%%,‘)\ A
5 N 0 2Nco\uee
NA DA%\
o ;
%
8
o.
[=3
o
n o
° g
(&)
(-]
=
sl lof ' G
ACEY LT
fg;w.‘ LR
‘..‘.h‘: \Qi‘(— G
g/ I 555 uo e

000000 0006G b




	Agenda
	3 Application to register land known as Scrapsgate Open Space at Minster-on-Sea as a new Village Green
	4 Application to register land at Duncan Down, Whitstable as a new Village Green
	5 Application to register land known as Chaucer Field at Canterbury as a new Village Green

